ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SCOCI AL SERVI CES COW TTEE
April 9, 2001
1:35 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken
Senator Jerry Ward
Senat or Bettye Davis

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Loren Lenmn, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 86
"An Act relating to enploynent of teachers who have subject-matter
expertise; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 86(HES) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 155

"An Act relating to the Al aska Conm ssion on Postsecondary
Education and the Al aska Student Loan Corporation; relating to
student financial aid prograns and the financing of those prograns,;
establishing the Al aska Advantage Loan Program and the Al aska
Suppl enental Education Loan Program increasing the bonding
aut hori zation of the Al aska Student Loan Corporation; providing for
liens resulting froma default under AS 14.43 or AS 14.44; relating
to the duties of the recorder regarding those liens; relating to
defaults wunder the Western Regional H gher Education Conpact;
relating to the prohibition on discrimnation regardi ng prograns
under AS 14.43; relating to fees for the review of certain
postsecondary institutions; nmaking conformng anmendnents; and
providing for an effective date."”

MOVED SB 155 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 135
"An Act relating to nental health information and records; and
providing for an effective date."

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BI LL NO. 116
"An Act relating to the Al aska tenporary assistance progran and
providing for an effective date."”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- April 9, 2001



PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

SB 86 - See HESS m nutes dated 3/16/01 and 3/19/01.
SB 116 - No previous Senate commttee action.

SB 155 - See HESS m nutes dated 4/2/01.

W TNESS REG STER

M. Bob Labbe, Director

Di vi si on of Medical Assistance

Departnent of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110660

Juneau AK 99811- 0660

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in Medicaid presentation.

M. John Sherwood

D vision of Medical Assistance

Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110660

Juneau AK 99811-0660

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in Medicaid presentation.

Ms. Nancy Well er

Di vision of Medical Assistance

Departnent of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110660

Juneau AK 99811- 0660

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in Medicaid presentation.

Senat or Pete Kelly

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 86.

Dr. Bruce Johnson
Deputy Conm ssi oner
Depart ment of Education &
Early Devel opnent
801 W 10" St.
Juneau, AK 99801-1894
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports the concept of SB 86 but prefers that
new teachers be required to partake in a teacher certification
pr ogr am when enpl oyed.

M. Jim Nordlund, Director

Di vision of Public Assistance
Department of Health and Social Services

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 9, 2001



PO Box 110640
Juneau AK 99811-0640
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 116.

Kri sten Bonengen

Assi stant Attorney General

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about SB 116.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-30, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAl RWOVAN LYDA CGREEN cal l ed the Senate Heal th, Education & Socia

Services Commttee neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Present were
Senators Davis and Geen. Senator Wl ken arrived shortly afterward.

Chai rwoman Green informed the commttee that representatives from
the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS) would give a
presentation about the Medicaid program a very conplex program
that is a driver in the cost of doing business for DHSS.

MR. BOB LABBE, Director of the Division of Mdical Assistance,
i ntroduced John Sherwood and Nancy Weller fromthe division. He
referred to a handout entitled, "Medicaid Directions,” which his
presentation woul d be based on. He explained the Medicaid program
is part of the Social Security Act (Title 19), created in 1965.
The Medi care program was established at the sane tinme. The state
adm ni sters Medicaid and shares in the funding while Medicare is
adm nistered by the federal governnent. States were given sone
flexibility with the Medicaid program and can choose options;
therefore each state's programis a little bit different.

The Medicaid regul ations are contained in 42 CFR

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if 42 CFR contains the regul ations for both
Medi caid and Medi care.

MR. LABBE said it contains the regulations for both.

MR. LABBE conti nued.

The state plan is Alaska's contract. It is a preprinted docunent
of several volunmes. The federal governnent requires that a single
state agency be designated to run the program in Alaska that is

DHSS. The Division of Medical Assistance coordi nates and nanages
the program but a nunber of other agencies participate in it.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 9, 2001



Clients apply through the Division of Public Assistance. The
program was traditionally | i nked to welfare paynent s.
Hi storically, the old age, blind and di sabl ed cash paynents were
al so adm ni stered by the state until 1974.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if eligibility could be noved.

MR LABBE said the eligibility determnation has to be adm ni stered
either by the agency that does the cash assistance or the Medicaid
agency, but the state has a choi ce.

MR. LABBE continued. The federal governnent requires there be an
advisory commttee. The Alaska conmttee neets quarterly and is
conprised equally of a broad array of providers, consuners, and
public nenbers.

SENATOR WLKEN asked the nanme of the pediatric dentist from
Fai r banks.

MR. LABBE said that is Geg Johnson and that he was the forner
Chair.

SENATOR W LKEN asked who the disability advocate is.
MR. LABBE said that is Sam Bush

MR. LABBE conti nued. The federal governnent has a nunber of
requi renents that must be followed: the program nust be operated
statewide; it nust cover certain groups of people; it nust cover
certain services; benefits nust be conparable anong groups; the
program nust provi de enough of a service to neet the purpose of the
service;, and it nust offer a freedom of choice of providers.
Medicaid is considered the payer of last resort with a few
exceptions. The program nust be operated with certain due process
considerations for the client. The division may request wai vers of
sone of the rules; the typical one is freedom of choice of
providers. That type of a waiver often occurs with nmanaged care
arrangenents. The state joined the programin 1972 after enabling
| egi sl ati on was enacted and services were expanded in 1976. A rate
advi sory conmmi ssion was established in 1983 and, in 1988, the
program began covering pregnant wonen and children under age 5 with
househol d i ncome not exceeding 100 percent of the federal poverty
| evel and added case nmnagenent for nutrition services. Between
1990 and 1998, the follow ng services were added:

* honme and community based wai ver services;

e« rehabilitation services for nental illness, alcoholism and
drug abuse;

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2001



e children in subsidized adopti ons;

 TEFRA
e coverage for pregnant wonen up to 200 percent of the poverty
| evel ;

e continuous eligibility for children beyond five years of age.
Nunber 720

MR. LABBE explained the Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act
(TEFRA) option is for children who would be institutionalized but
instead stay at honme wth the parents. Usually income is a factor
ineligibility, but under the TEFRA program the parents' incone is
not considered. This option canme about during President Reagan's
era and was based on an individual case situation where the parents
wanted to bring their child home who was on a ventilator. |If they
did so, they would | ose coverage and could not provide the needed
support on their owmn. Fromthat case, Congress enacted the TEFRA
option in 1984, which the state picked up in 1993.

MR. LABBE infornmed the commttee that there are many categories of
eligibility under the federal rules; Al aska covers 32, nmany of
whi ch are mandatory.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN asked if there are 18 other optional prograns
of fered through Medicaid that the state could choose to participate
in.

MR. LABBE said that is a rough estimate and that nunber changes
every year.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if M. Labbe has a grid of the 50 eligible
categories and which categories each state covers.

MR LABBE said he does not have one but could put one together. He
noted he has seen a grid that the federal governnent has produced
on optional services by state but he is not aware of a
conpr ehensi ve chart on eligibility. He offered to provide Senator
Wl ken with the available material.

MR. LABBE continued with his presentation. The nmandated groups of
el i gi bl e persons incl ude:

« famlies and chil dren;
e children in foster care;

« pregnant wonen and children under age 6 up to 133 percent of
the federal poverty |evel;

e« jinfants born to wonmen on Medi cai d;

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2001



e children up to age 18 with famly incomes up to 100 percent of
the federal poverty level; and

e certain aliens for energency services only.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the federal poverty level rate of $1,475
per nmonth for a famly of three is based on net or gross incone.

MR. LABBE said it is based on gross incone.

MR, JOHN SHERWOOD, Division of Medical Assistance, explained that
it is applied as a gross incone test.

SENATOR W LKEN asked whet her that nunber is adjusted for different
areas of the state.

MR. LABBE said it is statewide but there is a difference between
Al aska and the Lower 48.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN asked if 250 percent of the poverty level in
Al aska equal s 275 percent el sewhere.

MR. LABBE said he is not sure. He continued. Two ot her nmandatory
groups, the aged and disabled, are tied to those who receive

suppl emental security income (SSl). Some people continue to be
eligible for Medicaid who woul d have | ost their coverage because of
an increase in their social security benefits. That group was

"grandf at hered" in by Congress.
CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if that eligibility applies for life.

MR. LABBE said it does unless sonething else happens, such as
addi ti onal income from anot her source.

MR. LABBE said one of the bigger <categories of qualified
individuals is qualified Medicare beneficiaries. Some of those
clients are eligible for both Medicaid and Medi care, but of those
clients who only have Medicare, the Medicaid program pays their
prem uns, co-insurance, and deductibles, depending on certain
factors. DHSS gets a federal match toward the prem uns.

Regarding the optional services, Alaska has elected to cover
pregnant wonen and children at a higher inconme |evel of up to 200

percent of the poverty |evel. Al aska al so covers services for
children who are not receiving cash assistance. Al aska does not
cover the people who would fall in the nedically needy category.

That category is for people whose incone is above the level for the
cash prograns but who have nedi cal expenses. Those people pay up
to a certain |level, above which Medicaid pays. Al of the other

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2001



groups are considered to be categorically needy. The nedically
needy category woul d cover people who have catastrophic costs due
to illness and prescription costs for seniors and disabled clients.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked if the state ever opted to cover that
cat egory.

MR. LABBE said not to his know edge but he thinks it was anal yzed
in the past.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked M. Labbe to el aborate on the higher incone
| evel for that category.

MR LABBE expl ai ned the incone of people in that category could not
be nore than 133 percent of the cash standard for a welfare
recipient. If their inconme, mnus nedical expenses, brings them
bel ow the 133 percent |level, they would be eligible. Recently, the
Health Care Financing Adm nistration reinterpreted its policy and
decided to allow a higher incone for the nedically needy. The
incomre |level was liberalized so that those people would not have to
"spend down" so far. One of the problens with the programis that
peopl e have to al nost inpoverish thenselves to be eligible.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN asked if that is true of all categories.

MR. LABBE said he was referring to the nedically needy as that is
the group where a big "spend down" occurs. He pointed out that the
medi cal | y needy category was created by Congress in 1965.

MR. LABBE said Al aska has an option to use 300 percent of the SSI
paynent |evel, which is about $1500 per nonth, as the eligibility
| evel for individuals in need of an institutional |evel of care.
That category of people does not receive SSI cash paynents but has
a higher incone. A few years ago the Legislature opted to
participate in coverage for persons who are disabled but work.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if that option was done through a waiver.

MR LABBE said no, it was a new option established by Congress that
states could elect to participate in.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN sai d DHSS pays a premiumfor some of its clients
covered under Medicare and asked if there is a simlar opportunity
to pay a prem umunder CHI A - conprehensive health insurance.

MR LABBE said he was not sure. Under Medicaid, DHSS has an option
to pay health insurance premuns if paynment is cost effective.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2001



CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked M. Labbe to ook into that and report back
to the commttee. She commented it nmay be a way to get insurance
for people who would participate in the cost.

MR. LABBE described the incone |levels for the different categories
of eligible groups. He pointed out there is not nuch conparability
between the groups regarding eligibility, with the exception of
children, because they receive full coverage because of federa
directives. He stated that persons ages 12-64 with no children
who do not neet the disability test, are not eligible for any
servi ces.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if a woman who needs prescreening for early
detection for breast or cervical cancer in that group would qualify
for that service.

MR. LABBE said not wunless she was in another category.
Hi storically, there has been no coverage for the mddle aged,
single person but under sone of the new prograns there are new
groups of eligible people.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if that is a Medicaid program
MS. NANCY WELLER, Division of Medical Assistance, said it is.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN asked if the Center for Disease Control (CDC) is
norphing into a Medicaid programregardi ng treatnent of breast and
cervical cancer

M5. WELLER said the CDC program covers screening only. The new
eligibility option under Medicaid is for people who are screened by
t he CDC program and di agnosed with cancer. Eligibility is tied to
screeni ng by the CDC program

MR. LABBE continued his presentation by reviewng federally-
mandat ed services and the optional services.

CHAl RNMOVAN GREEN asked if the state receives a federal match for
the optional services it provides.

MR, LABBE said it does. He finds it interesting that prescription
drug coverage is an optional service that states can choose. The
Medi cal Rate Advisory Comm ssion (MRAC) sets a fair rate for
reasonabl e costs. DHSS recently changed its systemto sinplify it.
Over the years it becane very conplicated and nunerous appeal s over
rates were fil ed. He hopes the sinplified system reduces that
wor k| oad.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2001



CHAI RMOMAN GREEN asked if the appeal process was recently changed.

MR. LABBE said a bill was introduced to change the appeal process
but he does not believe it passed. The changes made to the rate
setting systemwere a result of that |egislation. DHSS worked well
with the Alaska Hospital and Nursing Hone Association on that
i ssue. Regarding the Disproportionate Share Hospital program a
federal allotnment does require a state match but it can be used to
pay certain hospitals. It was designed for those teaching and
public hospitals in the Lower 48 that provide a lot of charity
care. Most states wth state institutions directed those
additional allotnents as their financing nechani sm The Al aska
Psychiatric Institute was funded in this way until the federal
government restricted the anount of the allotnent that could be
used for API. DHSS is now looking for other things to use the
allotment for.

CHAl RMOMAN GREEN asked M. Labbe to describe the Medicaid cost
report.

MR. LABBE said it is a cost report that facilities are required to
submt to the Medicaid program DHSS also requires that it receive
a copy. The report lists the facility's cost for various
procedures, charges for patient days and ot her costs.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if the figures contained in those reports
are the published rate for the general public.

MR. LABBE said he thought it contains total annual costs for the
different aspect of hospital operations and revenue. When the
rates are set, the MRAC | ooks at the costs and conducts audits.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said she is trying to find out whether the report
is based on what the hospital charges everyone or a Medicaid rate.

MR. LABBE said it should be based on the hospital's general rates

and costs. He inforned the conmmttee that DHSS inplenented a
Resource Based Relative Value Scale (RBVS) that contains a
conversion factor for each unit. Therefore, if a procedure is

worth two units, the reinbursenent anmount can easily be determ ned.
This scale is relatively easy to adjust across the 10,000 physician
codes. The initial inplenmentation was difficult but it has been
wel | accept ed. It also allows DHSS to easily conpare Al aska's
rates with other states' rates.

MR LABBE expl ai ned the cal cul ati on used to rei nburse providers for

prescription drugs. Rei mbursenent for |aboratory services,
anbul atory surgery and rural health clinics are based on rates set

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 9, 2001



by Medicaid. A function naned Surveillance and Uilization Review
(SURS) is used to review programaccountability. User services and
claim patterns of providers are reviewed and random letters are
sent to recipients to determne if services billed were actually
recei ved. In addition, DHSS uses a software program to audit
clainms, evaluate billing information and coding accuracy, and
review for conpliance. He noted that DHSS has a contractor who
wor ks on identifying other payers and to make sure that third party
coverage is identified for billing.

TAPE 01-30, SIDE B

DHSS al so has prior approval records for certain services and it
refers cases to the provider fraud unit in the Departnent of Law,
which is federally funded. DHSS started a pilot project a few
years ago in which high cost cases are identified and individua

case nmanagenent takes place to provide for nore efficient
managenent of conpl ex nedical cases. DHSS would like to expand
t hat program

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN announced that the conmmttee would recess to a
call of the Chair so that nmenbers could return to the Senate fl oor
session. The commttee would reconvene after session to take up
the bills on its agenda. She thanked M. Labbe and asked himto
conplete his presentation on Wdnesday.

TAPE 01-31, SIDE A

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN called the Senate Health, Education and Soci a
Services Committee back to order at 4:37 p.m Present were
Senators Lenan, Davis, WIken and G een. The first order of
busi ness to cone before the commttee was SB 155.

#SB 155
SB 155- STUDENT LOANS/ COWN. ON POSTSECONDARY ED

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN rem nded comm ttee nenbers that SB 155 was heard
in commttee for the purpose of providing commttee nmenbers with
time to prepare anendnents, if desired. No anendnents have been
proposed and no further concerns have been expressed about the
| egi sl ati on.

SENATOR LEMAN noved SB 155 from conmittee wth individua
recomendati ons and its acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

#

#SB 86

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- April 9, 2001



SB  86- TEACHER EMPLOYMENT & SUBJECT EXPERTI SE

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked Senator Pete Kelly, sponsor of SB 86, if the
anmendnent before the conmttee has been incorporated into the
proposed conm ttee substitute.

SENATOR KELLY said it was not.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if, regarding the provision that allows the
substitution of five years of work experience in the subject
matter, any type of experience in that subject that is not work
rel ated woul d apply.

SENATOR KELLY said he would not object to deleting the word "work"
on page 2, line 19, so that five years of any experience in the
subject matter is required.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN referred to Sec. 3(d) and asked if Senator Kelly
woul d object to using the term "experienced educator" instead of a
"tenured teacher" (page 3, line 10).

SENATOR KELLY said the idea of the nentor, although he agrees with
it, did not cone fromhim The idea of a tenured teacher nmay have
been used because it assunes a certain |evel of experience.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN poi nted out that an experienced teacher may not be
tenured in a certain district. She said the sectional analysis
says that Section 5 pertains to teachers comng off retirenent and
lay of f status and requires themto have practiced within the prior
five years. She asked for an expl anation.

SENATOR KELLY sai d he thought that provision is in existing | aw

DR. BRUCE JOHNSQON, Deputy Conm ssioner of the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent (DCEED), said the only thing he can
think of is that teachers are required, when renewi ng certificates,
to have six additional credit hours over a five-year period. He
said he is not sure whether that provision refers to the nentor.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN i ndi cated that an explanation of that provision
was included in the sectional analysis, even though that provision
isin current law. She noved to renove the word "work" from page
2, line 19 (Arendnent 1), and to substitute on page 3, line 9, the
word "tenured” with the word "experienced" (Amendnent 2). There
bei ng no objection, the notion to adopt Amrendnents 1 and 2 carri ed.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- April 9, 2001



SENATOR LEMAN stated that he has two mi nor anmendnents to propose.
The first (Arendnent 3) is on page 2, line 16, and is to insert the
words "or national" after "regional". He infornmed the commttee
that while nost colleges are accredited by a regional association,
sone are accredited by a national association and the Al aska
Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education (ACPE) considers both
associ ations to be conparable.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if there was objection to Amendnent 3.
SENATOR DAVI S asked Senator Lerman to explain his intent.

SENATOR LEMAN said that inserting that | anguage will nake sure that
all qualified institutions are covered and that both associations
have conpar abl e st andards.

There being no further objection, Anendnent 3 was adopt ed.

SENATOR LEMAN noved to adopt Amendnent 4, in which the word "or
m nored” would be inserted after the word "naj ored” on page 2, line
18. He said that a person could mnor in a subject and have
considerably nore expertise in an area than he or she may have
under a typical education degree.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN asked if a mnor requires 18 hours of coursework.
Number 178

DR. JOHNSON said that a m nor usually consists of a mninmum of 18
hours of courseworKk.

SENATOR DAVI S asked Dr. Johnson his opinion of Amendnment 4. She
noted that many teachers already teach in their mnor area but the
focus was toward teaching in the area they najored in.

DR. JOHNSON said DOEED has concerns about this bill regarding
having individuals in the classroom who are not making a general
commtnment to teacher education. DCEED would prefer that the

i ndividual be enrolled in a teacher education program at the sane
time the individual is teaching for many reasons, not the |east of
which is that evidence in other states strongly suggests that
teacher education preparation prograns really help support a
subj ect matter specialist capacity to be successful over the | ong
term Those teachers tend to stay in their assignnments |onger

Know ng content is an inportant ingredient of teaching but know ng
how to work with students is also inportant. DCEED does not object
to all owm ng these people to enter as teachers but it would prefer
that they imediately be enrolled in a teacher education program

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- April 9, 2001



that is simlar to the Masters in Art of Teaching so that they can
receive a teaching credential in a one year period of tine.
Regardi ng the question of whether teachers should be able to teach
in afield they mnored in, he doesn't think that would be a big
probl em f or DOEED. Agai n, DCEED woul d rat her have the focus be on
supporting the credential aspect. He pointed out the district
woul d be making the decision on whether a person wwth a mnor is
qual i fied.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN noted that a person mght have a major in
chem stry and a mnor in physics, in which case teaching physics
woul d not be foreign.

There being no further objection to Anmendnent 4, CHAI RAOVAN GREEN
announced it was adopt ed.

SENATOR W LKEN noved Anendnent 5, by Senator Kelly, which reads as
fol | ows.

AMENDMENT 5

OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR KELLY
TO CSSB 86( ), Draft Version "L"

Page 2, line 23:

Del ete "and"
Page 2, line 26, followng "certificate":
Insert "; and
(4) conpleted, wthin the tw years before

beginning to teach as a subject-matter expert teacher, the
Ssi x-week introductory course to prepare subject-nmatter expert
teachers for the classroont

Page 2, following |line 30:

Insert a new subsection to read:

"(c) The departnment shall establish the requirenents for
a six-week introduction to teaching course for persons
interested in becom ng subject-matter expert teachers. A
school district or regional educational attendance area may
not enploy a person as a subject-nmatter expert teacher under
this section unless the person has successfully conpleted the
course within the two years inmedi ately preceding the person's
initial hire by the school district or regional educational
attendance area or unless the person has been enpl oyed as a
subj ect-matter expert teacher in another school district or
regi onal educational attendance area imediately preceding
enpl oynent in the school district or regional educationa
attendance area.”

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- April 9, 2001



Rel etter the follow ng subsections accordingly.

Page 3, line 11, following ".":

Insert "At the end of the subject-matter expert teacher's
first year of teaching, the nmentor, the teacher, and the principa
of the school in which the subject-matter expert teacher is
teaching shall neet for an evaluation of the strengths and
weaknesses of the teacher's performance as a teacher during the
past year."

SENATOR KELLY expl ai ned that Anmendnment 5 incorporates, into the
qualifications for a subject nmatter teacher, a six-week pre-course.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if the pre-course would be required before
t he person begins.

SENATOR KELLY said it would take place before the person begins
t eachi ng.

SENATOR LEMAN asked if the nane "six-week introduction" 1is
somet hing that has al ready been devel oped by the University and is
known or whether that is the expected | ength of the class.

SENATOR KELLY said it is not sonething that has been devel oped.

SENATOR LEMAN asked if a person could conpress that course and take
it inhalf the time if need be.

SENATOR KELLY said he had the sanme thought. He asked, because four
of the nenbers are also on the Senate Finance Committee, whether
this anendnent coul d be addressed by the Senate Fi nance Conmittee
to give himnore time to work on it.

SENATOR W LKEN asked for unani nous consent to wi thdraw Anendnment 5.
There bei ng no objection, Amendnent 5 was wi thdrawn.

There being no further discussion or questions, SENATOR LEMAN noved
CSSB 86(HES) fromcommttee with individual recomendations and its
acconpanyi ng fiscal note. There being no objection, the notion
carried.

#

#SB 116
SB 116- AK TEMP. ASSI STANCE PROGRAM AVENDMENTS

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN noted that a proposed comrittee substitute to SB
116 was before the conmttee.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- April 9, 2001



SENATOR LEMAN noved to adopt Version F as the working draft of the
commttee. There being no objection, the notion carried.

MR, JI M NORDLUND, Director of the D vision of Public Assistance,
said SB 116 nekes anmendnents to the Al aska Tenporary Assistance
Program ( ATAP), which was created when Al aska's wel fare reform act
was enacted in 1996 [SB 98 by Senator Geen]. SB 98 is a very
robust |law that has enabled the division to reform Al aska's wel fare
system and to successfully nove welfare recipients from welfare
into the workforce. SB 116 is the first attenpt to nmke any
amendnents to that law. One section of SB 116 is inportant; the
ot hers are mnor nodifications.

MR. NORDLUND said the section that was in SB 116 that was renoved
fromVersion F dealt with the 60 nonth [ifetinme [imt on benefits.
Both the federal and state |laws all ow 20 percent of the caseload to
be exenpt fromthe five-year limt. Congress and the Legislature
recogni zed that, inevitably, sone welfare recipients will have to
receive benefits beyond 60 nonths because certain conditions
prevent them from working and providing for their famlies. He
poi nted out the 20 percent waiver applied to the original casel oad,
whi ch anmounted to about 12,000 famlies at the tine, before welfare
reformwas instituted. The division has projected that when the 60
nonth limt hits in July of 2002, the caseload will be bel ow 6, 000
so the 20 percent waiver will only apply to about 1200 clients. He
explained that if 20 percent originally applied to the 12,000, one
can assune those famlies have severe problens that will not go
away. The division predicts that in future years (2003 and 2004)
it will have to cut people off of the caseload who all would agree
shoul d continue to receive assi stance.

MR. NORDLUND said the bill as introduced by the Governor sinply
repeals the 20 percent cap. Instead of wusing that arbitrary
figure, the division suggested establishing objective, strict
criteria by which famlies would be allowed to receive assistance
beyond 60 nonths. The famlies that fit the criteria would receive
an extension rather than a lifelong exenption. He explained that
section 2 would have repeal ed that cap [AS 47.27.015(f)].

MR. NORDLUND sai d he discussed alternative solutions with Senator
Green and Representative Dyson. Senator G een was concerned that
putting the criteria in regulation was too | oose of an approach.
On proposal was to put the criteria in statute. Representati ve
Dyson suggested applying the 20 percent waiver to the origina
nunber of recipients, which would give the division enough roomto
cover the nunber of famlies that need continual assistance. After
further discussions with Senator G een, she decided to pursue a
solution to that problem next year so Section 2 was renoved

SENATE HES COW TTEE -15- April 9, 2001



al t oget her. Because that section was the heart of the bill, it
will have to be dealt with at some point.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN asked M. Nordlund to review the provisions of
Ver si on F.

MR. NORDLUND said that Section 1 of Version F deals with the
conformty issue with federal |aw Under federal law, famlies
that live in Native villages with unenploynent rates over 50
percent, as determ ned by state data, are exenpt fromthe 60 nonth
limt. Alaska |law does not contain a simlar provision so Section
1 will bring Alaska's statute into conformty with the federal |aw
It was not in the original version of SB 116 because renoving the
20 percent cap woul d have taken care of the problem

SENATOR WARD asked what qualifies as a Native village.

MR. NORDLUND said that definition comes fromthe list of federally
recogni zed vil | ages.

SENATOR WARD asked if this applies to the 226 vill ages recogni zed
by the Ada Deere case.

MR. NORDLUND sai d he believes so.

SENATOR WARD asked if it applies to the federally recogni zed tri bes
or whether it applies to a place |Iike Egegik.

MR. NORDLUND offered to get an answer for the conmttee.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN sai d she did not realize this bill applied to the
federally recogni zed tri bes.

Number 428

M5. KRI STEN BOMENGEN, assistant attorney general, Departnent of
Law, said she does not believe the federal welfare reform | aw
referred to the federally recognized tribes. She offered to
provide the definition to the commttee at a | ater date.

CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN asked if that originally applied to a Native
village or a rural village.

MR. NORDLUND said the federal |aw uses the word "reservations” so
it was trying to replicate that in Alaska. He again offered to get
t he specific |anguage for the conmttee.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN conmented that the econony of the village was

SENATE HES COW TTEE -16- April 9, 2001



supposed to trigger the waiver.

MS. BOVENGEN sai d she believes Al aska's statutory | anguage sinply
refers to that provision in the federal |aw.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if Section 1, as witten, addresses that
concern.

M5. BOVENGEN said it does.

MR. NORDLUND said Section 2 is in response to a | awsuit that DHSS
| ost.

V5. BOMENGEN expl ai ned the case was a chal |l enge to DHSS regul ati ons
that were generated under the statute as it fornerly read. Under
those regul ations, the basis for the 50 percent reduction was an
eval uation of the enploynent of the famly's principal wage earner.
That | anguage was borrowed fromthe Aid to Famlies wi th Dependent
Children (AFDC) statute in effect at the tine. That program had
three different categories based on deprivation. The third category
was created for two-parent famlies that had an attachnent to the
wor kf or ce. If the wage earner was unenployed, the famly could
qualify for the AFDC benefit. That term nol ogy was borrowed
because the AFDC statute was in effect when this |aw was being
witten. DHSS then made, in regulation, an attenpt to distinguish
two-parent famlies in which one of the parents was incapacitated.
The court determned that the plain |anguage of this statute
indicated a different kind of evaluation than the one used by DHSS
and overrul ed the regul ation.

MR. NORDLUND said when he researched why this provision was
originally chosen, he found that | anguage was chosen before federa
welfare reform was on the horizon. DHSS took two approaches:
Senat or Green's wai ver approach, which assuned that |aw woul d not
pass and the Governor's approach, which assuned that it would. The
| anguage had to be consistent with AFDCif it was to be in effect,
assum ng federal welfare reform didn't occur. Borrow ng that
| anguage made sense at the time, but the problemnow is that the
court interpreted that |anguage literally when the law intended it
to apply to two-parent famlies despite the unenpl oynent status or
who was the principal wage earner. The danger is, if this part of
the law is not changed, DHSS m ght have to go back and pay benefits
to two-parent famlies in the sunmer, which he does not think was
the Legislature's intent.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if the |anguage in Section 2 addresses the
crux of the problem

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- April 9, 2001



MR. NORDLUND sai d the | anguage does address the court case but the
| anguage in the commttee substitute does not contain | anguage from
the original bill that exenpts a two-parent famly fromthe benefit
cut if one parent is incapacitated. ATAP has exenpted such
famlies for the last four years so the commttee substitute would
make a policy change. He was not sure that was the Legislature's
i ntent.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if the commttee substitute would treat the
two-parent famly of which one parent is incapacitated the sanme as
a "whol e" two-parent famly.

MR. NORDLUND said that is correct.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked M. Nordlund what the court directed DHSS to
do and whether the original bill contains the m ni mum | anguage.

V5. BOMENCEN sai d the | anguage proposed in the original bill would

maintain the status quo. It provides for the fourth category of
eligibility that is provided for in ATAP with one exception for the
i ncapaci tated parent. The | anguage in the conmttee substitute

sets a clear line that establishes that all two-parent famlies are
subject to the reduction and DHSS coul d not change that.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked if DHSS prefers the | anguage in the original
bill regarding the provision.

MS. BOVENGEN said it does.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if anything in that |anguage is superfluous
and is not required for DHSS s needs.

MS. BOVENGEN sai d no.
CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked what has been added to address the | awsuit.
V5. BOMENGEN expl ai ned the question is what has been subtracted.

CHAl RMOVEN GREEN asked if she was speaking of the phrase, "the
unenpl oynent of the famly's principal wage earner.”

M5. BOMENGEN said that termis no | onger exam ned by the departnent
and is no | onger useful because it doesn't really give the public
fair notice of what is being established. She thought the court
felt that the | aw contained plain | anguage while DHSS was telling
the court it did not have to | ook at unenpl oynent because it does
not use that as an eligibility factor any | onger.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 9, 2001



Number 599

SENATOR WARD asked if the commttee substitute as is would not
satisfy the court.

M5. BOMVENCEN said, "This |language is beside the fact. The court
didn't address this. What the court addressed was that we had
| anguage that didn't clearly state what we were doing in the

| anguage that we've extracted. It's good to extract it. The
| anguage here is a policy change. It does not keep the program at
the status quo, it instead changes so that nore famlies wll
receive the two-parent - the 50 percent reduction during those

sunmer nont hs because it
TAPE 01-31, SIDE B

[ M5 BOVENGEN continued.] ... the exception that the division was
able to recogni ze because it was borrowed fromthe AFDC concept.
The court doesn't have an opinion about what the policy is that is
adopted here. |If that is the policy that this conmttee chooses,
that's beside the point for the court.”

SENATOR WARD asked what, in Ms. Bonengen's opinion, the court has
asked the legislature to do, if anything.

V5. BOMENGEN said the court has asked DHSS, as |ong as the statute
contains the | anguage "unenpl oynment of the famly's principal wage
earner” to make an evaluation of the enploynment status of the
princi pal wage earner. The court has not asked the legislature to
change the law, it has only said this is what DHSS nust do under
the existing | aw

SENATOR WARD comment ed that DHSS nust write new regul ati ons then.

M5. BOVENGEN said it will and it will have to anal yze each famly's
rel ati ve unenpl oynment status.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked M. Nordlund and Ms. Bomengen to provide the
commttee with a definition of Native villages and she asked for a
si de- by-si de conparison of the two versions of the bill. She
commented that the |ess |anguage that nust be added to create
additi onal exceptions the better, and that it is her intent to
perfect that |anguage.

SENATOR WARD asked, regarding the people who will never be able to
get off of public assistance, at what point in time they should be
transferred to another program He asked if there has been any
di scussi on about ot her possible prograns that m ght be addressed in

SENATE HES COW TTEE -19- April 9, 2001



this bill.

MR. NORDLUND said a nunber of states have done that. Sone ATAP
clients have disabilities or incapacities that are not severe
enough to qualify for social security income but they are severe
enough to prevent those clients fromholding a job. He agrees that
finding a way to transfer those clients to a different programis a
good idea that needs to be explored as DHSS | earns nore about how

many clients will fall in this category. For now, they can
continue to be served under ATAP as long as there is roomunder the
cap but as nore people hit the 60 nonth Iimt, that cap wll be
reached.

#

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
CHAI RWOVAN GREEN adj ourned the neeting at 5:32 p.m

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 9, 2001



